
 

 

 

July 19, 2022 

 

Jacob Lehmann 

1909 North 56th Street 

Milwaukee, WI  53208 

Via Electronic Mail Only to jacob@lehmannelectrical.com 

 

Thomas Shipshock 

c/o Harold Shipshock Estate 

W275 N7236 Glacier Pass 

Hartland, WI  53029 

Via Electronic Mail Only to tshipshock@hydro-flo.com 

 

Donald Gallo, Attorney 

Axley Brynelson, LLP 

N20 W22961 Watertown Road 

Waukesha, WI  53186 

Via Electronic Mail Only to dgallo@axley.com 

 

 

SUBJECT:   Vapor Investigation Review 

Master Drycleaning, Inc., 6326 West Bluemound Road, Wauwatosa, WI 

BRRTS # 02-41-545142; FID # 241398630 

 

Dear Mr. Lehmann, Mr. Shipshock and Mr. Gallo,  

 

As you are aware, Fehr Graham on behalf of the Harold Shipshock Estate (formerly Master Drycleaning, Inc.) has 

been conducting a remedial action for the discharge of tetrachloroethene (PCE) at 6326 West Bluemound Road, 

Wauwatosa, WI (the site). Soil, groundwater and vapor sampling has been conducted on and off site to define the 

degree and extent of the PCE contamination per Wis. Admin. Code § NR 716.11(3)(a). The Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR) is requesting the installation of a vapor mitigation system (VMS) at the 518 North 64th 

Street residence (residence), the completion of the commissioning of the VMS at the onsite building and a vapor 

screening using the DNR guidance document RR-800.  

 

Request for installation of VMS at 518 North 64th Street residence  

The first round of sub-slab vapor sampling was conducted at the residence in 2009 and 2010. The results of the 

sampling identified trichloroethene (TCE), a breakdown product of PCE, above its residential vapor risk 

screening level (VRSL) in samples VP-3 and VP-3R. In Fehr Graham’s Additional Proposed Scope of Work 

report dated December 20, 2016, they proposed the installation of a VMS at the residence and possibly the  

installation of a VMS at the 524 North 64th Street residence depending on results of sub-slab vapor sampling. The 

proposed installation of the VMSs and the costs were approved by the DNR in a letter dated December 22, 2016.  

 

In Fehr Graham’s Status Report dated February 22, 2017, results were provided of an additional round of sub-slab 

sampling at the residence which identified TCE below its detection limit in all samples. Based on these results, 

Fehr Graham did not recommend that a VMS be installed at the residence and sub-slab sampling was not 

recommended at the 518 North 64th Street residence.  

 

 
 

Tony Evers, Governor 
Preston D. Cole, Secretary 

 Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

 

State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
1027 W. Saint Paul Avenue 
Milwaukee WI  53233 

 dnr.wi.gov 
wisconsin.gov 

mailto:tshipshock@hydro-flo.com
mailto:dgallo@axley.com


Page 2 

 

Based on the exceedances of TCE in the vapors beneath the residence at levels above VRSLs in 2009 and 2010, 

the DNR is again requesting the installation of the VMS to prevent vapor inhalation by the homeowner. TCE has 

potential acute health risks at relatively low concentrations in indoor air. Attached is a fact sheet from the 

Department of Health Services for TCE. Commissioning and maintenance of the system is required; guidance 

regarding VMS commissioning can be found in RR-800. The DNR requests the submittal of a construction 

documentation report for the VMS within 60 days after the installation, per Wis. Admin. Code § NR 724.15.  

 

Complete Commissioning of the Onsite VMS 

In the Vapor System Commission Report and Indoor Air Test Results report dated May 25, 2017 by Fehr Graham, 

results were provided of one round of pressure field extension (PFE) readings and one round of indoor air 

sampling for commissioning of the VMS in the onsite building.  

 

The DNR requested in a letter dated September 21, 2016 that to commission or verify the performance of the 

VMS in the onsite building, the following should be completed: 

• A minimum of three PFE readings, with at least one in the summer and one in the winter to evaluate 

seasonal effects. 

• Indoor air sampling after restoration of the building floor before occupancy and sample once within 6 

months after occupancy. 

 

No documentation has been provided to the DNR with the additional PFE readings and an indoor air sampling 

event within 6 months after occupancy. The DNR is requesting this additional work be conducted as soon as 

possible now that the building is occupied by the new owner Jacob Lehmann. Guidance regarding VMS 

commissioning can be found in RR-800. 

 

Conduct Vapor Screening  

Using the most recent soil and groundwater data, conduct a vapor screening using RR-800 to identify properties 

where vapor intrusion is possible. This process may be iterative as additional data becomes available.   

 

Report Review 

On June 9, 2022, the DNR received the Remedial Action Documentation and Additional Site Investigation Report 

by Fehr Graham. The DNR is in the process of conducting a review of the report and will provide a response.  

 

Please feel free to contact me at 414-639-4007 or at alice.egan@wisconsin.gov if you have any further questions 

or concerns. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Alice Egan 

Hydrogeologist – Remediation and Redevelopment Program 

Southeast Region 

 

 

cc: Jeremiah Yee, Ph.D., Division of Public Health, Wisconsin Department of Health Services 

      Dillon Plamann, Fehr Graham 

 

Enclosure: 

 P-02480, 10/2020: TCE in the Air, Wisconsin Department of Health Services, Division of Public Health

mailto:alice.egan@wisconsin.gov


 

 

 


